
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 7, 2022 
(Revised 2/7/2022) 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – FEBRUARY 7, 2022 

 
BOS Board Room                  Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 

 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters – RC Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 
concerning a potential business locating at the Moss III Property, Project Jonah Ordinance 
and Interjurisdictional Agreement, and RC Employee Insurance Retirement Program.  
(Executive Session is closed to the public.  Citizens are welcome to attend and wait in the boardroom until Executive Session is complete.) 
 
INVOCATION   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Ordinance to Permit Russell and Tazewell County Building Inspection Officials and 
Russell and Tazewell County Erosion and Sediment Control Inspection Officials to 
Mutually Perform Inspections Upon Property Owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC.       
in Russell County and Tazewell County, Virginia. 
 

2. Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement 
 

3. Paul Inskeep – Project Jonah Engineer   
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 7, 2022 
(Revised 2/7/2022) 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of January 3, 2022 
b. Unapproved minutes of February 2, 2022 

      
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration……………………………...A-3 
 
RC Planning Commission 
 
Scott McGlothlin (Resigned)      4 Year-Term         March 5, 2022 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS………………………………………..B-1 
 

1. Noise Ordinance 
 

2. RC Employee Insurance Retirement Program 
 

3. An Ordinance to Permit Russell and Tazewell County Building Inspection Officials and 
Russell and Tazewell County Erosion and Sediment Control Inspection Officials to 
Mutually Perform Inspections Upon Property Owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC in 
Russell County and Tazewell County, Virginia. 
 

4. Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement  
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. 2022 VACo & Virginia Rural Center Rural Caucus Reception………….....…….C-1 
 

2. Dr. Gregory Brown’s Resignation for the Local College Board………………...C-2 
 

 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 7, 2022 
(Revised 2/7/2022) 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 
REQUESTS 

  
3. VDOT Resolution for Highway System Changes Resulting from the                       

Construction of VDOT Project 1056-083-R30, N501, Route 1056, Windy                                    
Hill Lane…………………………..………………….…………………………………....C-3 
 

4. VDH and RC Agreement for Funding and Services of the Russell County                           
Health………………………………………………………………………………………C-4 
 

5. Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, PPLC Proposal for Central Services                                    
Cost Allocation Plan…………………………………………………………………….C-5 
 

6. VDOT Grant – Community of Dante Depot Restoration…………………………..C-6 
 

7. DCJS Local Law Enforcement Block (LOLE) Grant Program…………………...C-7 
 

8. RC Disposal Truck Surplus and Sale………………………………………………..C-8 
 

9. RC Disposal Truck Purchase………………………………………………………….C-9 
 

10. VA Department of Energy Dante Area Community Redevelopment Project…C-10 
 

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………....L 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….M 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..N 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….O   

 



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(5)(7)(8) – Legal Discussions with the RC Industrial Development 
Authority (IDA) concerning a potential business locating at the Moss III Property, Project 
Jonah Ordinance and Interjurisdictional Agreement, and RC Employee Insurance 
Retirement Program.   

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed, or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 2/7/22     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 

1. Ordinance to Permit Russell and Tazewell County Building Inspection Officials and 
Russell and Tazewell County Erosion and Sediment Control Inspection Officials to 
Mutually Perform Inspections Upon Property Owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC.       
in Russell County and Tazewell County, Virginia. 
 

2. Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement  
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO PERMIT RUSSELL AND TAZEWELL COUNTY BUILDING 
INSPECTION OFFICIALS AND RUSSELL AND TAZEWELL COUNTY EROSION 

AND SEDIMENT CONTROL INSPECTION OFFICIALS TO MUTUALLY PERFORM 
INSPECTIONS UPON PROPERTY OWNED BY PURE SALMON VIRGINIA, LLC IN 

RUSSELL COUNTY AND TAZEWELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, 
Virginia, will conduct a public hearing on February 7, 2022 at 6:00 PM, or as soon 
thereafter as may be practical, at the Russell County Government Center, located at 
137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia 24266, and hereby gives its intent to adopt An 
Ordinance to Permit Russell and Tazewell County Building Inspection Officials and 
Russell and Tazewell County Erosion and Sediment Control Inspection Officials to 
Mutually Perform Inspections Upon Property Owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC in 
Russell County and Tazewell County, Virginia. 
 
 Pursuant to Section 36-105 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, Russell 
County, Virginia and Tazewell County, Virginia are entitled to implement inspection 
activities pertaining to industrial building inspections.  Further, pursuant to Section 62.1-
44.15:58 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, Russell County, Virginia and 
Tazewell County, Virginia, each being Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Program 
(VESCP) authorities have the authority to enter into agreements with adjacent 
jurisdictions to assist with enforcement of the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control 
Act.  However, pursuant to Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 
amended, for Russell County, Virginia and Tazewell County, Virginia to mutually share 
the enforcement powers of industrial building inspections and erosion and sediment 
control inspections, an Ordinance must be adopted by the Boards of Supervisors of 
Russell County, Virginia and Tazewell County, Virginia 
 
 All persons wishing to comment on the Ordinance are hereby invited to attend 
and state their views thereon.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if 
special assistance is needed to participate in a meeting of the Board of Supervisors, 
please contact the County Administrator’s Office by telephone at (276) 889-8000, by 
facsimile at (276) 889-8011, or by email at lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us.  The 
Ordinance can also be reviewed on the County’s Website at Russell County, VA | Official 
Website (russellcountyva.us).  A notification of five (5) working days before the meeting will 
enable the County Administrator’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to the meeting. 
 
 A complete copy of the Ordinance is posted on the Russell County Circuit Court’s 
bulletin board on the second floor of the Russell County Courthouse, located at 53 East 
Main Street, Lebanon, Virginia 24266.  A complete copy of the Ordinance is also on file 
in the office of the County Administrator, located at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon,  
Virginia 24266. 
 
By Order of the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia 
By: Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator 

https://www.russellcountyva.us/
https://www.russellcountyva.us/


AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
HELD AT THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER, LOCATED AT 137 HIGHLAND DRIVE, LEBANON, 
VIRGINIA 24266, ON THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022, FOLLOWING A PUBLIC HEARING 
BEFORE THE BOARD HELD ON THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022, UPON NOTICE TO THE 
PUBLIC BY PUBLICATION IN A NEWSPAPER OF GENERAL CIRCULATION IN RUSSELL COUNTY, 
THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED, FOLLOWING PUBLIC HEARING, A MOTION, AND 
SECOND: 
 
Date: February 7, 2022 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO PERMIT RUSSELL AND TAZEWELL COUNTY BUILDING 
INSPECTION OFFICIALS AND RUSSELL AND TAZEWELL COUNTY EROSION 

AND SEDIMENT CONTROL INSPECTION OFFICIALS TO MUTUALLY PERFORM 
INSPECTIONS UPON PROPERTY OWNED BY PURE SALMON VIRGINIA, LLC IN 

RUSSELL COUNTY AND TAZEWELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 

 WHEREAS, Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC is a limited liability corporation 

sponsoring a private business initiative to create multiple aquaculture facilities in 

Tazewell County, Virginia and Russell County, Virginia for the growth, harvesting, and 

processing of salmon on a commercial scale heretofore not accomplished in the United 

States, including facilities ranging from fish hatcheries, to facilities for growing fish, to 

facilities for processing and packaging fish for wholesale, to facilities for 

commercialization of fish by-products. 

 WHEREAS, in the construction of said aquaculture facilities, Project Jonah will 

conduct significant land-disturbing activities, which will displace greater than one million 

cubic yards (1,000,000 yd3.) of soil; 

 WHEREAS, land-disturbing activities that displace greater than ten thousand 

square feet (10,000 ft2.) of soil require erosion and sediment control permits, pursuant 

to Section 62.1-44.15:51 et seq. of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended; 

 

 



 WHEREAS, both Russell County and Tazewell County have adopted Virginia 

Erosion and Sediment Control Programs (herein, “VESCP”) and have become VESCP 

authorities, pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:54 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended; 

 WHEREAS, the construction of said aquaculture facilities will require Project 

Jonah to acquire building permits in Russell County and Tazewell County, pursuant to 

Section 36-105 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended; 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:54 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, both Russell County and Tazewell County are entitled to implement fee 

schedules and charge fees pertaining to erosion and sediment control inspections; 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 36-105 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, both Russell County and Tazewell County are entitled to implement fee 

schedules and charge fees pertaining to industrial building inspections; 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:58 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, Russell County and Tazewell County, as VESCP authorities, are permitted to 

enter into agreements with adjacent jurisdictions to assist with the responsibilities of the 

Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Law, being Section 62.1-44.15:51 et seq. of the 

Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, which includes review and determination of 

adequacy of erosion and sediment control plans; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, the power of industrial building inspections may be exercised jointly between 

Russell County and Tazewell County, and the Counties may enter into an agreement 

between them, after adoption of an Ordinance, for jointly exercising said powers; 



WHEREAS, the Counties remain committed to assist Project Jonah in the 

creation of hundreds of jobs and millions of dollars worth of taxable assets throughout 

the region; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors for Russell County, Virginia, does 

hereby ORDAIN that, pursuant to Sections 15.2-1300, 36-97 et seq., and 62.1-44.15:51 

et seq. of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, that: 

(1) Pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:58 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, 

Russell County grants, authorizes, and otherwise empowers the Tazewell County 

Director of Engineering, and/or his agents and assigns, to enforce the provisions 

of the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Law, Section 62.1-44.15:51 et seq. 

of the Code of Virginia, and the Russell County VESCP, within the territorial limits 

of Russell County, Virginia, pertaining to property owned by Pure Salmon 

Virginia, LLC. 

(2) Pursuant to Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, 

Russell County grants, authorizes, and otherwise empowers the Tazewell County 

Director of Engineering, and/or his agents and assigns, to enforce the provisions 

of the applicable state and local building codes, pursuant to Section 36-97 et seq. 

of the Code of Virginia, and such ordinances adopted by Russell County, within 

the territorial limits of Russell County, Virginia, pertaining to property owned by 

Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC. 

 

 

 



(3) Pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:58 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended,

the Russell County Building Official, and/or his agents and assigns, accept any

reciprocal powers granted and/or authorized by Tazewell County to enforce the

provisions of the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Law, Section 62.1-

44.15:51 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, and the Tazewell County VESCP, within

the territorial limits of Tazewell County, Virginia, pertaining to property owned by

Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC..

(4) Pursuant to Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended,

Russell County accepts any reciprocal powers granted and/or authorized by the

Tazewell County Director of Engineering, and/or his agents and assigns, to

enforce the provisions of the applicable state and local building codes, pursuant

to Section 36-97 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, and such ordinances adopted by

Tazewell County, within the territorial limits of Tazewell County, Virginia,

pertaining to property owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC..

(5) All erosion and sediment control inspection fees shall be collected in the

jurisdiction which such erosion and sediment control inspection occurred,

regardless of which County’s employees performed the erosion and sediment

control inspection.

(6) All industrial building inspection fees shall be collected in the jurisdiction which

such industrial building inspection occurred, regardless of which County’s

employees performed the industrial building inspection.



(7) All employees of Russell County or Tazewell County shall remain and be

considered employees of their respective County, regardless of the jurisdiction in

which the employees are performing work under this Agreement.

It is so ORDAINED this 7th day of February 2022.

RECORDED VOTE: 

MEMBERS PRESENT: ________________________________________________ 
MEMBERS ABSENT: ________________________________________________ 
AYES:  ________________________________________________ 
NAYS: ________________________________________________ 
ABSTENTIONS:  ________________________________________________ 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Lou Ann Wallace  
Chairperson – Board of Supervisors 

____________________________
Lonzo Lester  
Russell County Administrator



PROJECT JONAH INTERJURISDICTIONAL AGREEMENT FOR 
EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL INSPECTION AND 

BUILDING INSPECTION 

This AGREEMENT is dated and entered into this the 7th day of February, 2022 

by and between THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA, 

(herein, “Russell County”) and THE BOARD OF THE SUPERVISORS OF TAZEWELL 

COUNTY, VIRGINIA, (herein, “Tazewell County”), both being political subdivisions of 

the Commonwealth of Virginia incorporated pursuant to Section 15.2-400 et seq. of the 

Code of Virginia (1950), as amended (herein collectively “the Counties”).   

W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS, Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC is a limited liability corporation 

sponsoring a private business initiative to create multiple aquaculture facilities in 

Tazewell County and Russell County for the growth, harvesting, and processing of 

salmon on a commercial scale heretofore not accomplished in the United States, 

including facilities ranging from fish hatcheries, to facilities for growing fish, to facilities 

for processing and packaging fish for wholesale, to facilities for commercialization of fish 

by-products (herein, “Project Jonah”); 

WHEREAS, in the construction of said aquaculture facilities, Project Jonah will 

conduct significant land-disturbing activities, which will displace greater than one million 

cubic yards (1,000,000 yd3.) of soil; 

WHEREAS, land-disturbing activities that displace greater than ten thousand 

square feet (10,000 ft2.) of soil require erosion and sediment control permits, pursuant to 

Section 62.1-44.15:51 et seq. of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended; 



WHEREAS, both Russell County and Tazewell County have adopted Virginia 

Erosion and Sediment Control Programs (herein, “VESCP”) and have become VESCP 

authorities, pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:54 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended; 

WHEREAS, the construction of said aquaculture facilities will require Project 

Jonah to acquire building permits in Russell County and Tazewell County, pursuant to 

Section 36-105 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended; 

WHEREAS, Russell County has issued a Request for Qualifications for qualified 

vendors to conduct erosion and sediment control and industrial building services, for 

which interviews have been conducted, and upon which a contract will be awarded for 

these engineering services; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:54 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, both Russell County and Tazewell County are entitled to implement fee 

schedules and charge fees pertaining to erosion and sediment control inspections; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 36-105 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, both Russell County and Tazewell County are entitled to implement fee 

schedules and charge fees pertaining to industrial building inspections; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:58 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, Russell County and Tazewell County, as VESCP authorities, are permitted to 

enter into agreements with adjacent jurisdictions to assist with the responsibilities of the 

Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Law, being Section 62.1-44.15:51 et seq. of the 

Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, which includes review and determination of 

adequacy of erosion and sediment control plans; 



WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, the power of industrial building inspections may be exercised jointly between 

Russell County and Tazewell County, and the Counties may enter into an agreement 

between them for jointly exercising said power; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regional Project Jonah Participation Agreement 

adopted by the Counties, dated October 27, 2020, the Counties desire that fees 

collected from erosion and sediment control inspections and industrial building 

inspection be collected and disbursed as Project Revenue, subject to the provisions of 

Article VI(C) as claims upon Project Revenue for infrastructure and capital expenses; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Counties remain committed to assist Project Jonah in the 

creation of hundreds of jobs and millions of dollars worth of taxable assets throughout 

the region; 

NOW THEREFORE, in order to carry out the purposes described herein, which 

will promote the development of Project Jonah for the mutual benefit of the Counties, 

the Counties hereby agree as follows: 

(1) Pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:58 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended,

Russell County grants, authorizes, and otherwise empowers the Tazewell County

Director of Engineering, and/or his agents and assigns, to enforce the provisions

of the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Law, Section 62.1-44.15:51 et seq.

of the Code of Virginia, and the Russell County VESCP, within the territorial limits



of Russell County, Virginia, pertaining to property owned by Pure Salmon 

Virginia, LLC. 

(2) Pursuant to Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, 

Russell County grants, authorizes, and otherwise empowers the Tazewell County 

Director of Engineering, and/or his agents and assigns, to enforce the provisions 

of the applicable state and local building codes, pursuant to Section 36-97 et seq. 

of the Code of Virginia, and such ordinances adopted by Russell County, within 

the territorial limits of Russell County, Virginia, pertaining to property owned by 

Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC. 

(3) Pursuant to Section 62.1-44.15:58 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, 

the Russell County Building Official, and/or his agents and assigns, accept any 

reciprocal powers granted and/or authorized by Tazewell County to enforce the 

provisions of the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Law, Section 62.1-

44.15:51 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, and the Tazewell County VESCP, within 

the territorial limits of Tazewell County, Virginia, pertaining to property owned by 

Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC.. 

(4) Pursuant to Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, 

Russell County accepts any reciprocal powers granted and/or authorized by the 

Tazewell County Director of Engineering, and/or his agents and assigns, to 

enforce the provisions of the applicable state and local building codes, pursuant 

to Section 36-97 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, and such ordinances adopted by 

Tazewell County, within the territorial limits of Tazewell County, Virginia, 

pertaining to property owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC.. 



(5) All erosion and sediment control inspection fees shall be collected in the 

jurisdiction which such erosion and sediment control inspection occurred, 

regardless of which County’s employees performed the erosion and sediment 

control inspection. 

(6) All industrial building inspection fees shall be collected in the jurisdiction which 

such industrial building inspection occurred, regardless of which County’s 

employees performed the industrial building inspection. 

(7) The terms and conditions of the Regional Project Jonah Participation Agreement 

adopted by the Counties, dated October 27, 2020, shall control and be binding 

upon the collection of erosion and sediment control inspection fees and industrial 

building inspection fees.  Said fees shall be considered Project Revenue as that 

term is defined therein.  Russell County or Tazewell County may assert claims 

upon said fees as Project Revenue for capital expenses and infrastructure in 

accordance with Article VI(C) of said Participation Agreement.  It is anticipated 

that said fees shall be first applied to the costs accrued by Russell County 

pursuant to the Request for Qualifications advertised and awarded by Russell 

County for these engineering services. 

(8) The term of this Agreement shall expire on (a) December 31, 2024, or (b) when 

Project Jonah has completed its final land-disturbing activity in the Counties and 

has been issued all certificates of occupancy by the Counties, whichever comes 

first. 



(9) All employees of Russell County or Tazewell County shall remain and be 

considered employees of their respective County, regardless of the jurisdiction in 

which the employees are performing work under this Agreement. 

(10) The jurisdiction for any challenges by Project Jonah to any determinations made 

under erosion or sediment control inspection or industrial building inspection by 

Russell County or Tazewell County shall be a court of appropriate jurisdiction in 

the jurisdiction which the subject property lies. 

(11) Tazewell County shall not be liable to any third party for procurement defects 

regarding any contract entered into by Russell County and the successful vendor 

pursuant to the Request for Qualifications advertised and awarded by Russell 

County.  The terms and conditions of the Regional Project Jonah Participation 

Agreement adopted by the Counties, dated October 27, 2020, shall control and 

be binding upon all other third-party claims.   

(12) This Participation Agreement shall not be enforceable against any Participant 

until: 

(a) Each County's (Russell and Tazewell) governing body has approved this 

Agreement by vote of its governing body at a public meeting; and 

(b) Evidence of such approval in the form of a written resolution certified by 

the Clerk of the Board of each County's (Russell and Tazewell) governing 

body is attached hereto; and 

(c) The Chairpersons of the Counties’ (Russell and Tazewell) respective 

Boards of Supervisors and their County Administrators have executed this 

Agreement.   



(13) This Agreement may only be modified by a writing approved by the Counties’ 

(Russell and Tazewell) respective governing bodies, by vote at a public meeting, 

evidenced by a certified copy of a written resolution of each County's governing 

body.  

(14) The Counties (Russell and Tazewell) may not withdraw from this Agreement 

unless the other Participants unanimously agree, by vote of their respective 

governing bodies at a public meeting.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Governing Bodies identified, by authorized action, 

have caused this Agreement to be executed and their respective seals affixed hereto 

and attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing the 7th day of 

February 2022. 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________  ________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board    Lou Ann Wallace 

Board of Supervisors Chairperson  
 
COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ _______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board    Thomas A. Lester, Jr.  
      Board of Supervisors Chairman 
 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

          Meeting: 2/7/22       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of January 3, 2022 
• Unapproved minutes of February 2, 2022 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 03, 2022 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, January 03, 
2022 at 5:00 pm beginning with Executive (closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session to discuss legal matters pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(7)(8) 
concerning The Russell County Public Service Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian  
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:   Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 

 



CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed, or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 
 
Invocation by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors                          
to approve the agenda as amended. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Organizational Meeting 
 

LOU WALLACE ELECTED CHAIRPERSON 
 
Rebecca Dye relinquished the Chair to the Clerk. 
 
Rebecca Dye nominated Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea nominated David Eaton 
 
The vote was: 



Lou Wallace: five (5) votes:  Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton and Oris Christian 
David Eaton – two (2) votes:  Carl Rhea and Steve Breeding  
 
Lou Wallace was elected Chairperson for the 2022 calendar year. 
 
The Clerk relinquished the Chair to Lou Wallace 
 

ORIS CHRISTIAN ELECTED VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
Tim Lovelace nominated Oris Christian 
David Eaton nominated Carl Rhea 
 
Oris Christian – Four (4) votes:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Carl Rhea – Three (3) votes:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Carl Rhea 
 
Oris Christian was elected Vice Chairman for the 2022 calendar year. 
 

LONZO LESTER RE-APPOINTED AS CLERK AND VICKI PORTER AS DEPUTY CLERK 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors                          
to re-appoint Lonzo Lester as Clerk and Vicki Porter as Deputy Clerk for the 2022 calendar year. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER ADOPTED  
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adopt Robert’s Rules of Order for the 2022 calendar year. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF COUNTY BYLAWS 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the county bylaws as presented for the 2022 calendar year. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVAL OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING DATES 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve Board of Supervisors meeting dates for the 2022 calendar year, the first Monday of every 
month at 6:00 pm.   
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE 2022 BUDGET SCHEDULE 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the budget schedule as presented for the 2022 calendar year. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Acknowledgement 
 
Dr. Norman Rexrode was presented a Lifetime Achievement Award by the Board in honor of  his years of 
service to Russell County. 

 
CARTER MCGLOTHLIN SUSPENDED AS RUSSELL COUNTY PSA BOARD MEMBER 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
temporarily suspend Carter McGlothlin as a member of the Russell County PSA as there are criminal 
charges against Mr. McGlothlin for alleged use of public property. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Oris Christian and Carl Rhea 
 

APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 06, 2021 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the December 06, 2021 minutes as presented and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPRVOAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $529,404.84 including reoccurring and withholdings. 



 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF PRE-AUTHORIZED PAYMENTS FOR 2022 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve pre-authorized payments as presented for calendar year 2022. 

 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian were appointed to the Budget Committee by the Chairperson. 

EDWARD TILLER AND DAVID COMPTON RE-APPOINTED TO THE FINNEY COMMUNITY CENTER BOARD 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to re-
appoint Edward Tiller and David Compton to the Finney Community Center for two (2) year terms, said 
terms ending January 03, 2024.                                

The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CHARLES COLLINS RESIGNATION ACCEPTED 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept the resignation of Charles Collins from the Planning Commission. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

PHILLIP ADDINGTON APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Phillip Addington to the Russell County Planning Commission for a four (4) year term, said term 
ending October 12, 2025. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 



PRESENTATIONS 
 
Greg Hancock discussed the Litter Ordinance and how he thinks it applies to his situation. 
 
Citizens Comment was opened, hearing none, the Chair closed. 
 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
Katie Patton, County Attorney discussed the Noise Ordinance, Retirement Incentive and the COFA 
Executive Director Contract. 
 
A committee consisting of Lonzo Lester, Vicki Porter, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Katie Patton and 
Tammy Gilbert were appointed to discuss the insurance / retirement incentive and report back to the 
Board. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF A CONSOLIDATED AMENDMENT AND CONSENT AGREEMENT WITH VRA, SWVRJA AND 

THE CITY OF BRISTOL, VA 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Consolidated Amendment and Consent Agreement with Virginia Resources Authority, 
Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Authority and the City of Bristol, Virginia. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR A FULL-TIME LITTER OFFICER 
 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
advertise for full time Litter Officer. 
 
The vote was:   
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A DCJS VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN GRANT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept and appropriate a Department of Criminal Justice Violence Against Women Grant in the amount 
of $62,009.00. 
 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 



APPROVAL OF A DCJS 2021 MITIGATING COVID-19 PANDEMIC RISK GRANT 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept and appropriate a Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Mitigating COVID -19 Pandemic Risk 
Grant in the amount of $47,189.00. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None   
 

APPROVAL TO SURPLUS SHERIFF’S VEHICLES 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
surplus sheriff’s department vehicles as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT RESOLUTION FOR DISCONTINUANCE OF ROUTE 743 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to a 
Virginia Department of Transportation Resolution for Discontinuance of Route 743. 
 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN TO RECONVENE 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn to reconvene in Richmond, Virginia on Wednesday, February 02, 2022. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________                                          ________________________________ 
Clerk                                                                                                           Chair 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 2/7/21      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s January 2022 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s January 2022 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s January 2022 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• January 2022 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  A-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 2/7/22        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
  

RC Planning Commission 
 

Scott McGlothlin (Resigned)      4 Year-Term         March 5, 2022 
 









                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

        Meeting: 2/7/22         6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports  

 
1. Noise Ordinance 

 
2. RC Employee Insurance Retirement Program 

 
3. An Ordinance to Permit Russell and Tazewell County Building Inspection Officials and 

Russell and Tazewell County Erosion and Sediment Control Inspection Officials to 
Mutually Perform Inspections Upon Property Owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC in 
Russell County and Tazewell County, Virginia. 

 
4. Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement  

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 
RETIREMENT INSURANCE PROGRAM 

 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors agrees to participate in the following hospitalization 
benefits                              for retirees: 
 
Eligibility: 

 
1. Employees who are members of the Virginia Retirement System and are 

eligible to retire. 

2. The employee must be at least age 50 but must not have reached the age of 
Medicare Insurance eligibility. 

3. The employee must have fifteen (15) years of service with the Russell County 
Board of Supervisors including the ten (10) years immediately preceding 
retirement. 

4. An Insurance Retirement Program application  must be received by the County 
Administrator within 90 days of an effective retirement date. Employees approved 
by                                the Virginia Retirement System to receive disability benefits at any time during                              
the calendar year will be eligible for  application to this program with an effective 
date to coincide                                 with their retirement thru the Virginia Retirement System. 

5. Elected Constitutional Officers and any employees whose salary is solely paid by 
grant funding are not eligible to participate in this program. 

6. Elected Constitutional Officers are required to adopt, implement, and maintain the 
most current version of the Personnel Policy duly adopted by the Russell County 
Board of Supervisors and require monthly time sheets to be submitted to them for 
employees to be eligible for participation in this program. Failure to abide by either 
of these requirements at any point will render any employee ineligible for 
participation in this program. 

 
Benefits:  

 
The retiree agrees to trade, without pay, a minimum of 25 days of unused 

accumulated sick/personal leave balances per calendar year at retirement date or a total 
of 175 days over a seven-year period, in exchange to pay a percentage of the health 
insurance premium up to seven years or until the retiree reaches the  age of Medicare 
insurance eligibility, whichever comes first. The retiree will be allowed to trade unused 
accumulated sick/personal leave days for the days required as specified above. The 
percentage is based on total years of service as listed below: 

15 years service… .............. ..60% of insurance paid by the board 
 

16-20 years service… .......... .65% of insurance paid by the board 
 

21-24 years service… ........... 70% of insurance paid by the board 
 



 
 

25-29 years service… ........... 80% of insurance paid by the board 
 

30+ years service… .............. 85% of insurance paid by the board 
 

The Board will pay the percentage for a single healthcare plan policy for the retiree.  
Employee Plus One and Family coverage (retiree, spouse, and siblings or retiree and 
siblings) would require the retiree to pay the difference between the cost of a single plan and 
the cost of an employee plus one or a family healthcare plan.  The hospitalization  insurance 
must be through the group insurance plan purchased by the Russell County School Board for 
the regular employees and will be subject to all the rules and regulations governing this policy. 

In the event the retiree becomes deceased during the contract period before all days 
are purchased, the spouse/dependent/estate administrator of the deceased retiree would 
receive the unused accumulated balances of sick/personal leave remaining.  The 
reimbursement will be equal to the rate paid for unused sick/personal leave at  the time of 
retirement. 
Application Procedures 

 
Employees who wish to participate in the Retirement Insurance Program (the 

“Program”) should submit an application to the Russell County Administrator within 90 days 
prior to the anticipated date of retirement. 

 
Revocability 

 
Applicants for the program may withdraw their applications upon request.   Failure                         to 

meet the yearly minimum purchase requirement could result in the revocation of insurance 
benefits. 

 
Rescinding of Program 

 
This policy is subject to appropriations by the Russell County Board of Supervisors.  

Intent to rescind the policy will be published at the regular monthly                                   Board meetings preceding 
the Board Meeting at which a vote is to be  taken. In the event, the plan is rescinded, 
participants already in the plan will continue to receive benefits. 

 
 



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA PERTAINING TO A ONE-TIME WAIVER OF THE REQUIREMENT THAT 
AN APPLICATION PURSUANT TO THE INSURANCE RETIREMENT PROGRAM 

MUST BE  RECEIVED AT LEAST NINETY (90) DAYS PRIOR TO THE EMPLOYEE’S 
EFFECTIVE RETIREMENT DATE 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia “RCBOS” has 
considered and adopted a retirement incentive formally known as the Insurance 
Retirement Program at its regular board meeting held on February 7, 2022. 

WHEREAS, a requirement of the Insurance Retirement Program is that an employee 
apply for the benefits under said program at least ninety (90) days prior to that employee’s 
effective retirement date. 

WHEREAS, the RCBOS desires to allow employees who have already announced an 
effective retirement date less than ninety (90) days from February 7, 2022 to be eligible 
for the benefits of the Insurance Retirement Program. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLOVED, the RCBOS shall allow a one time waiver of the 
requirement that an application for the Insurance Retirement Program must be received 
at least ninety (90) days prior to an employee’s effective retirement date if that employee’s 
effective retirement date occurs on or before May 9, 2022. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that after May 9, 2022 failure to file a timely application 
pursuant to the Insurance Retirement Program shall result in the employee forfeiting any 
benefits thereunder. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 

The undersigned Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Russell,  
Virginia, hereby certifies that the Resolution set forth above was adopted during an open 
meeting on February 7, 2022, by the Board of Supervisors with the following votes: 
 

Aye: 

Nay: 

Abstentions: 

 

Signed this 7th day of February, 2022 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 



AMENDMENTS TO THE PERSONNEL POLICY 

 

The following language will be deleted from Section 07-05 in the last sentence of the 
second paragraph under number 5. 

“Accrued sick leave may also be used to pay for health insurance after retirement.” 

and will be replaced with 

“Accrued sick leave may also be used for participation in the Insurance Retirement 
Program subject to all eligibility requirements.” 

The next addition will be to add the following paragraph after the first paragraph under 
the heading “Constitutional Officers and Employees:” 

“Elected Constitutional Officers are required to adopt, implement, and maintain the most 
current version of the Personnel Policy duly adopted by the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors and require monthly time sheets to be submitted to them for employees to 
be eligible for participation in this program. Failure to abide by either of these 
requirements at any point will render any employee ineligible for participation in this 
program.” 

 



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-9 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 2/7/22         6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for February 2022: 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. 2022 VACo & Virginia Rural Center Rural Caucus Reception………….....…….C-1 

 
2. Dr. Gregory Brown’s Resignation for the Local College Board………………...C-2 

 
REQUESTS 

  
3. VDOT Resolution for Highway System Changes Resulting from the                       

Construction of VDOT Project 1056-083-R30, N501, Route 1056, Windy                                    
Hill Lane…………………………..………………….…………………………………....C-3 

 
4. VDH and RC Agreement for Funding and Services of the Russell County                           

Health………………………………………………………………………………………C-4 
 

5. Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, PPLC Proposal for Central Services                                    
Cost Allocation Plan…………………………………………………………………….C-5 

 
6. VDOT Grant – Community of Dante Depot Restoration…………………………..C-6 

 
7. DCJS Local Law Enforcement Block (LOLE) Grant Program…………………...C-7 

 
8. RC Disposal Truck Surplus and Sale………………………………………………..C-8 

 
9. RC Disposal Truck Purchase………………………………………………………….C-9 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various  
 
 
 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


2022 Rural Caucus Reception

NAME:

NAME:  

NAME:                                                                                  

EMAIL:  

COUNTY/ORGANIZATION:

MY GUEST'S NAME:  (add $75)

PAYMENT INFORMATION

CHARGE OPTIONS:             VISA            American Express            MasterCard            Discover

CREDIT CARD NUMBER:                                                                    

EXPIRATION DATE:

NAME ON THE CARD:

CONTACT PHONE:  

 

TITLE:

TITLE:  

TITLE:                                                                        

CONTACT EMAIL:                                                         

Or please make check payable to VACo. Mail check and completed 
registration form to 1207 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23219.

W E D N E S D A Y ,  F E B R U A R Y  2 ,  2 0 2 2  
OMNI RICHMOND HOTEL |  5 :30PM-8PM

Fax completed registration form with credit card information to 804.788.0083. 

PLEASE CONTACT
VALERIE RUSSELL AT
VRUSSELL@VACO.ORG
WITH ANY QUESTIONS.

Hotel Reservation Details: Lodging costs are not covered in the registration fee. The
Chairpersons' Institute is held at the Omni Richmond Hotel, 100 South 12th Street, Richmond,
VA 23219. Room rates start at $162 (single room occupancy). To reserve a hotel room, call
804.344.7000 by January 11, 2022, with this code: Government Legislative Day 2022 Group
or reserve a room at this Omni Richmond Hotel link.

Refund Policy: Requests for registration refunds are honored if received by January 28, 2022. Substitutions are
allowed in the event a supervisor is unable to attend. For more information, call VACo at 804.788.6652.

$75 per  person through January  28
$90 per  person January  29 and later  |  $90 at  the door

E a r l y  R e g i s t r a t i o n  D e a d l i n e  i s  J a n u a r y  2 8
R o o m  b l o c k  a t  t h e  O m n i  R i c h m o n d  H o t e l  c l o s e s  o n  J a n u a r y  1 1

https://www.omnihotels.com/hotels/richmond/meetings/local-government-legislative-day-2022-01282022
https://www.omnihotels.com/hotels/richmond/meetings/local-government-legislative-day-2022-01282022








2022 VACo & VML 
Virginia Rural Caucus & 

Local Government Day Legislation 
1.  County Administrator, Supervisor Wallace, and others met with VDOT concerning Clinch 
River pedestrian bridge and discussed progress on Dante Depot project.  

2. Supervisors Eaton and Breeding met with Delegate Will Morefield on various issues 
facing the County such as the Food Tax and the potential loss of revenue for the schools if 
passed and the problem with the states "across the board" raises in the schools and the 
salary inequities they generate. 

3. County Administrator, Supervisors Breeding,  Eaton, and Wallace met with Delegate 
Morefield on Project Jonah. 

4. County Administrator and PSA Chairman Porter discussed with the Virginia Resource 
Authority (VRA) the consolidation and refinancing of the remaining Rural Development (RD) 
loans.  Refinancing process will begin immediately.  

5.  Supervisor Wallace met with newly appointed DEQ Director Mike Rolband. 

6.  County Administrator, PSA Chairman Porter, and Washington County Administrator met 
to discuss the possibility of a joint water project that would be beneficial to both counties.  

7.  Supervisors Breeding and Eaton met with Delegate Jeff Campbell on his proposal for a 
regional study of waste disposal which would include Russell County.  They discussed the 
problems associated with waste disposal and the options for a recycling facility to be 
associated with any future landfill that may be proposed as a result of the study. 

In addition, they also promoted the concept of becoming more regionally independent by 
partnering with other counties in Southwest Virginia to develop a meat packing facility(s) 
and other agricultural related projects that would provide alternative crops/products for our 
local farmers and ranchers. 

8. Supervisor Wallace attended the annual Board Meeting of the Virginia Planning Districts, 
met newly appointed Director of DHCD, Bryan Horn, and Bill Curtis Assistant Director 
DHCD. 

9. Supervisors Eaton and Breeding discussed the Food Tax issue with Delegate Tim 
Anderson and stressed the problem with the loss of revenue and its impact on the local 
school systems. Also, they discussed the inequity created by the "across the board" raises 
for the SOQ school employees and the revenue demands placed on our County. 

10.Supervisor Wallace and Cumberland Plateau Planning District met with Tamarah 
Holmes on Broadband,  Water/Sewer for Project Jonah, Dante to St. Paul Regional Sewer 
Project, and the Honaker Downtown Revitalization Project. 

11. Supervisors Breeding and Eaton Spoke with Senator Travis Hackworth on general 
issues and the Food Tax. 





 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1  District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

     

 

The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 7th day of February 
2022 adopted the following: 

 

RESOLUTION FOR HIGHWAY SYSTEM CHANGES RESULTING FROM THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT  

1056-083-R30, N501 (UPC 88770) 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has constructed Route 1056, Windy 
Hill Lane, on a new alignment under Project 1056-083-R30, N501 and 

WHEREAS, the project sketch and VDOT Form(s) AM4.3, attached and incorporated 
herein as a part of this resolution, define adjustments required in the secondary systems 
of state highways as a result of that construction, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Russell County Board of Supervisors requests the 
Virginia Department of Transportation to add segment A-B to the secondary system of 
state highways, pursuant to §33.2-705 of the Code of Virginia, for which section this Board 
guarantees the right of way to be clear and unrestricted, including any necessary 
easements for cut slopes, fill slopes, and drainage facilities, records of which are on file 
with the Circuit Court Clerk of Russell County in Plat Book 7, Pages 64-65; and 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, the Russell County Board of Supervisors orders that a certified 
copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Resident Engineer for the Virginia Department 
of Transportation.  

 

Recorded Vote      A Copy Teste: 

Moved By:  _______________ 

Seconded By:  ____________ 

Yeas:  ______                                                        

Nays: ______                                                               Lonzo Lester, MBA, CPC, VCO                                                                                           
County Administrator  

 



 

 



38090204

Street Name To Termini Length

N
u

m
b

e
r 

O
f 

L
a

n
e

s

Recordation 

Reference

WINDY HILL 

LANE

CUL-DE-SAC 

[B] 0.32 2

PB 7, PAGES 

63-64

IN RUSSELL COUNTY

by Resolution of the governing body adopted February 7, 2022

R
te

 N
u

m
b

e
r

1056

The following VDOT Form AM-4.3 is hereby attached and incorporated as part of the 

governing body's resolution for changes to the secondary system of state highways.

Addition - VDOT Project §33.2-705

A Copy Testee           Signed (County Official):__________________________________________________________

Project/Subdivision:

Report of Changes in the Secondary System of State Highways

From Termini

ROUTE 727 [A]

1056-083-R30, N501

R
ig

h
t 

o
f 

W
a

y
 

W
id

th

50

John.Bolling
Highlight
 Signed (County Official)



























 

 
 

 

 
 

PROPOSAL FOR CENTRAL SERVICES COST ALLOCATION PLAN 
 

County of Russell 
PROJECT PROPOSAL 
 
Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates hereby submits a proposed plan of action to provide consultative 
assistance to the County of Russell in preparation of its annual Cost Allocation Plan.  Said plan shall be 
based upon costs incurred by the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 or at the County’s 
option for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 through 2023. 
  
CONTEXT STATEMENT 
 
The performance of Federal grants and/or contracts usually requires the expenditure of resources of 
various organizations of the County.  Federal regulations permit the County to recover indirect costs 
that it has incurred in performing federally supported programs.  An indirect cost is one that is incurred 
for the benefit of more than one program or objective and that cannot be readily or specifically 
identified with a particular program (e.g., overhead costs). 
 
Based on the requirements of appropriate federal regulations and decisions of management, Robinson, 
Farmer, Cox Associates proposes to provide assistance to the County in preparing a cost allocation and 
reimbursement plan to include the following: 
 

o A Central Services Cost Allocation Plan detailing the cost of direct or indirect services 
provided by the County to any department or unit of the County that is performing 
Federal grants or contracts; 

 
o the most accurate and reasonable basis of indirect cost allocation based upon: the 

central service/beneficiary department relationships as they existed during the fiscal 
year, promulgated regulations and management's decisions; 

 
o aggregation of financial and other data from the County's records that are necessary to 

compute the allocations, 
 

o use of client data to compute allocations, and 
 

o assistance in preparing the necessary documents and forms required for submission to 
reviewing agencies. 

 
TIME FRAME 
 
Robinson, Farmer, Cox will provide assistance on a timely basis so that the County can submit the Cost 
Allocation Plan to appropriate State agencies for review and inclusion in that year's reimbursement 
plan. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

EXPERIENCE 
 
Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates has been assisting Virginia localities in the preparation of Central 
Services Cost Allocation Plans for over thirty years.  For the past several years Robinson, Farmer, Cox 
Associates has annually been engaged to assist over 60 Virginia jurisdictions in their Plan preparation. 
 
COST 
 
Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates proposes to provide the above noted services in connection with the 
County's Central Services Cost Allocation Plan for costs incurred during the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021 for a fixed fee of $4,825.   Payment will be due and payable when the services outlined in this 
proposal are complete and accepted by the County. 
 
As an alternative, Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates proposes to provide the above noted services in 
connection with the County’s Central Services Cost Allocation plans for costs incurred during the fiscal 
years 2021 through 2023 for the price of $12,975, one-third of said fee shall be due and payable 
annually when the services outlined in this proposal are complete and accepted by the County. 
 
Please check one option below: 
 
         The County selects the one-year option. 
 
         The County selects the three-year option with annual savings. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES 
 

 
Scott Wickham, CPA, CFE 
Member 
January 10, 2022 
 
ACCEPTED: 
For the County of Russell 
 
 
 
BY:  _______________________________________________________                                                                 

Authorizing Official      Title   Date 
 



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 January 11, 2022 

 

 

Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

137 Highland Drive, Ste A 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

RE: Local Law Enforcement Block ("LOLE") Grant Program- FFY 19 

 

Dear Lonzo Lester: 

 

The Byrne Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG) makes federal funds available to 

localities to help support their efforts to reduce crime and improve public safety. The Virginia 

Department of Criminal Justice Services has been designated to administer a portion of the JAG 

funds reserved for Virginia and to make those funds available to local units of government. I am 

pleased to advise you that we are awarding your locality $2492, funded through federal grant 

2019-MU-BX-0026. Your DCJS grant award number will be determined once your eligibility 

application is submitted and approved. The project period for this program is 1/1/2022 through 

6/30/2022. 

 

To indicate your acceptance of the award and conditions: 

1. Sign the Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance (“SOGA”) and return it electronically 

within the next 45 days to grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

2. Localities wishing to accept the LOLE funds allocated for their jurisdiction will need to 

complete an “eligibility application” on DJCS’s On-line Grant Management System 

(“OGMS”) to ensure eligibility. The eligibility application process will be open until 

February 28, 2022. To receive funds, localities must complete the eligibility application 

process through the DCJS On-line Grants Management System (“OGMS”) no later than 

5:00 pm on February 28, 2022. Please note that although OGMS uses the words 

“application” throughout the system, this is not an application but an eligibility process. 

This is a six (6) month grant and there will be no continuation. 

3. Your agency will need to fill out all the requested information in the OGMS eligibility 

application to include the budget and brief budget narrative outlining how your agency 

will utilize the awarded federal funds (additional information on the LOLE grant program 

and how to complete the OGMS eligibility application is provided with this award 

package). 

 

 

mailto:grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov


2 

 

Lonzo Lester 

January 11, 2022 

Page Two 

 

 

The General Special Conditions and the Reporting Requirements and Projected Due Dates, 

are now referred to as Conditions and Requirements and will be posted online at 

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/grant-requirements within the next two weeks. Please 

review your Special Conditions carefully as they include specific requirements about how your 

grant funds must be managed. DCJS is mandated to comply with applicable requirements 

regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently accessible at 

https://www.sam.gov/SAM/. Therefore, you must maintain a valid Data Universal Numbering 

System (DUNS) number (a unique nine-digit number used for identifying and keeping track of 

entities receiving federal funds) and be registered in SAM to receive an award. For SAM 

registration assistance, please contact Lacey Payne at (804) 786-8003 or via email at 

Lacey.Payne@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

 

If you have not previously done so, you must register in our new On-line Grants 

Management System (OGMS) at https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/ in order to manage this grant 

online. The instructions on Registering for a New Account are posted here 

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/ogms-training-resources along with other resources and 

training videos. All registrants will be approved within 3 – 5 business days. 

 

We will be happy to assist you in any way we can to assure your project’s success. If you 

have any questions regarding this award, please contact your Grant Monitor, Nicole Phelps, at 

(804) 263-3388 or via email at Nicole.Phelps@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

       

Shannon Dion 

 

 

 

Enclosures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/grant-requirements
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/
https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/
https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/ogms-training-resources


3 

 

STATEMENT OF GRANT AWARD (SOGA) 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

1100 Bank Street, 12th Floor 

Richmond, Virginia  

Project Director Project Administrator Finance Officer 
The Hon. Steven Dye 

Sheriff 

79 Rogers Avenue 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8033 

sheriff@russellcountyva.us 

Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

137 Highland Drive, Ste A 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8000 

lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

Alicia McGlothlin 

Treasurer 

137 Highland Drive 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8028 

rctreas@bvunet.net 

 

*Please indicate your locality’s DUNS # in the space provided. As the duly authorized 

representative, the undersigned, having received the Statement of Grant Awards (SOGA) and 

Special Conditions attached thereto, hereby accepts this grant and agrees to the conditions and 

provisions of all other Federal and State laws and rules and regulations that apply to this award. 

 

Signature: ______________________________  Title: ________________________ 
  Authorized Official (Project Administrator) 

 
 

Date:   ______________________________ DUNS #: _____________________ 

Local Law Enforcement Block ("LOLE") Grant Program- FFY 19 

Subgrantee: Russell  

DCJS Grant Number: TBD  

Grant Start Date: 1/1/2022  Grant End Date: 6/30/2022 

Federal Grant Number:   2019-MU-BX-0026 

Federal Awardee:  BJA 

Federal Catalog Number:  16.738 

Project Description:   To strengthen Crime Control 

Federal Start Date:  10/1/2018 

Federal Funds:   $2492   

State General Funds:     

State Special Funds:   

Local Match:   _______ 

 

Total Budget:   $2492  Indirect Cost Rate: _____%  *If applicable 

 



Virginia Local Law Enforcement Grant Program FY 19 
 

Introduction 
 

The Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services (“DCJS”) is pleased to announce the availability of 
funds through the Local Law Enforcement (“LOLE”) Grant Program.  These funds are available under the 
Fiscal Year 2019 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (“JAG”) Program.  This program 
makes federal funds available to localities to help support their efforts to support public safety or crime 
prevention efforts. DCJS has been designated to administer a portion of the JAG funds reserved for 
Virginia and to make those funds available to local units of government. DCJS has designated this 
program the Local Law Enforcement, LOLE, Grant Program. Grant funds can be used for state and local 
initiatives, technical assistance, training, personnel, equipment, supplies, contractual support and 
information systems for criminal justice, including for any one or more of the following areas: law 
enforcement programs; prosecution and court programs; prevention and education programs; corrections 
and community corrections programs; drug treatment and enforcement programs; and planning, 
evaluation and technology improvement programs. 
 
Eligibility for LOLE Funds 
 
The LOLE grant program is a formula based grant opportunity.  Eligible localities have reported violent 
crime data at least three (3) years of the past ten (10) calendar years, to the Federal Bureau of 
Investigations Uniform Crime Report (URC) Part 1.  If a locality has not reported at least three (3) years 
of UCR Part 1 violent crime data in the past ten calendar years, they are ineligible to receive an 
award.  Localities wishing to accept the LOLE funds allocated for their jurisdiction will need to complete 
an “eligibility application” on DJCS’s Online Grant Management System (“OGMS”) to ensure 
eligibility.   
 
Funding Focused Areas 

 
o Law Enforcement to include- hiring, overtime, and equipment 
o Prosecution and Courts 
o Prevention and Education efforts 
o Corrections and Community Corrections 
o Drug Treatment 
o Planning, Education and Technology Improvement 

  
Prohibition on Use of Funds 
 
Funds through this grant program are not to be used to purchase, lease, rent or acquire tanks or armored 
vehicles, fixed-wing aircraft, limousines, real estate, yachts, consultants, or any vehicle not used primarily 
for law enforcement.  In addition, federal funds cannot be used to supplant State or local funds, but 
instead to increase the amount of funds that would be available otherwise from State and local sources. 
Grant funds may not be used for: weapons, ammunition, and related equipment normally and routinely 
provided by the locality; standard clothing and uniforms normally and routinely provided by the locality; 
construction or renovation; land acquisition, lobbying and political contributions; honoraria; bonuses; 
personal entertainment such as tickets to sporting events; personal calls; alcohol; or vehicles normally and 
routinely provided by the locality to others in the same roles. Grant funds cannot be used for refreshment 
breaks or meals at training events, meetings or conferences. 
 
 
 



Match Requirement 
 
There is no match requirement for this program. 
 
Funding Period 

 
The eligibility/ application process will be open until February 28, 2022. This should give localities ample 
time to assess their needs for funding.  This grant is a six (6) month grant program with the grant period 
being January 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022. There will be no continuation of the grant for this program. 
  
Grant Funds 
 

• This is a reimbursement grant program. 
• Grant funds cannot be used to supplant state or local funds that would otherwise be available for 

the same purposes. 
• Reimbursement will be based on paid invoices for approved expenditures or through 

requested advance drawdowns with expected expenditures. 
• Changes to the grant budget after award must be approved by DCJS prior to expending funds 

based on the changes. 
• Transactions occurring outside of the grant period will not be eligible for reimbursement. 

 
Forms and Instructions 

 
To receive funds, localities must complete the eligibility process through the DCJS On-line Grants 
Management System (OGMS) no later than 5:00 p.m. on February 28, 2022. Please note that 
although OGMS uses the words “application” throughout the system, this is not an application but an 
eligibility process. 
 
To complete the process, you must register in OGMS and, once approved, choose “Local Law 
Enforcement, (“LOLE”) Grant Program- FY 19 from the list on the left panel under Funding 
Opportunities. 
  
General Information: You will need to select “Create a New Application”.  The OGMS Application 
Creation Wizard will assist you in completing the application’s General Information form. Step 1 of the 
Wizard requires an application title and primary contact.  
 
The application title should include the locality’s name and fiscal year of the grant program (e.g. ABC 
Police Department LOLE FY19). 
 
The primary contact is the individual in your agency who will be designated as the primary person 
responsible for the eligibility process from your locality. The individual will receive automated email 
notifications when attention is needed on the forms. You will be able to add other persons to give them 
access to edit the forms or associate them later after the fiscal year has begun. 
 
Once the information has been entered, click “Save Form” to enter Step 2. Under this step, an Application 
ID will be assigned and the Program Area, Funding Opportunity, Application Stage, and Application 
Status will be auto populated. Select the locality for who you will be submitting these forms. Click “Save 
Form Information” to start Step 3. 
 



Under “Additional Applicants,” select any additional contacts within the locality that will also manage 
funding and work on the forms. This may include the Police Chief and Finance Officer. Once you click 
“Save Form Information” on Step 3, you will have completed the General Information component of the 
eligibility process. 
 
After General Information has been finished, you have the ability to complete the forms in any order or 
save to return at another time. 
  
Face Sheet: (everything in RED on the application form is required) 
 
o Congressional District: Select the Congressional District(s) that will benefit from the funding. To 

select more than one, hold down the Ctrl key. 
o Jurisdiction(s) Served: Select all jurisdiction(s) served. 
o Certified Crime Prevention Community: Click the hyperlink on the form to see if your locality is 

certified. Answer “Yes” or “No” 
o Type of Application: For this funding opportunity, you will choose “New.” 
o Community Setting: Check the box(s) that best describes the locality. 
o Brief Project Overview: Provide a short description of what the funds will be used for, for example, 

SWAT vests, Body Worn Camera mounts, etc. 
o Project Director: List the person who will have the day-to-day responsibility for managing the 

project, and provide all required contact information. 
o Project Administrator: Name and contact information for the County Administrator or City Manager 

(Administrative and Fiscal Agent) who has the authority to formally commit the organization/locality 
to complying with all the terms of the grant application, including the provision of the required 
match, if applicable.  

o Finance Officer: List the person who will be responsible for the fiscal management of the funds and 
provide all required contact information. 

 
LOLE Budget: Click “Edit Grid” and enter the amount allocated to the locality under the Budget 
Category your locality plans to use the funds, for example, you would choose Law Enforcement, 
Prosecution/ Courts, Prevention/Education and so on. Your localities award amount would be located in 
the award letter that went out to your locality. 
 

• Depending on which Budget Category your locality chooses to have LOLE funds 
support, you will then need to fill out the required information for each category.  

• For Example, if your locality is going to use LOLE funds for Law Enforcement, you 
will need to fill out the Law Enforcement Category, you should answer, “Yes” when 
asked, “Are Law Enforcement funds being requested?”. Law Enforcement funds can be 
used for Hiring, Overtime, or Equipment.  You will need to complete the appropriate area 
that the funding will be utilized. It is required that a brief narrative is completed for any 
section that you are utilizing funds. 

• Each budget category has their own form that will need to be completed if you are 
requested funds from that category.  If you are not requesting funds from a certain 
category, you can select “No” when asked if funds are being selected in a particular 
category.  

 
General Conditions and Assurances: This section is required under this grant program and must be 
completed by the Project Administrator. The Project Administrator, or the individual who has been 
delegated or designated as the signing authority, must certify that the grant funds gives assurances and 
certifies that the grant will follow federal conditions. 

 



Lobbying Disbarment: This section is required under this grant program and must be completed by the 
Project Administrator. The Project Administrator, or the individual who has been delegated or designated 
as the signing authority, must certify that the grantee will be in compliance with the certification 
requirements under 28 CFR Part 69, “New Restrictions on Lobbying” and 28 CFR Part 67, “Government-
wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement) and Government-wide Requirements for Drug-free 
Workplace”.  

 
Non-Supplantation: This section is required under this grant program and must be completed by the 
Project Administrator. The Project Administrator, or the individual who has been delegated or designated 
as the signing authority, must certify that the grant funds requested under this grant program will be used 
to supplement existing funds and will not replace (supplant) funds appropriated for the same purposes. 
 
Authority Certification: This section is required under this grant program and must be completed by 
the Project Administrator. If the person completing the application is not the Project Administrator, as 
previously defined, information regarding the signing authority, or the delegation of such authority, 
should be uploaded in the Attachments section of the application.  
 
Attachments: There are not required attachments for the LOLE grant program. Select “No”, attachments 
are not required. You will need to upload an attachment if the person completing the application is not the 
Project Administrator, information regarding the signing authority, or the delegation of such authority, 
should be uploaded. 

 
Submitting Forms 
 
To receive funds, localities must complete the eligibility/application process through the DCJS On-
line Grants Management System (OGMS) no later than 5:00 p.m. February 28, 2022. Each form 
must be marked as complete before you can submit. If you receive an alert, you will need to review the 
form for any missing required information. 

  
Technical Assistance 
 
Please contact the following DCJS staff for questions regarding your Local Law Enforcement, “LOLE”, 
Grant program: 
 
o Nicole Phelps: email nicole.phelps@dcjs.virginia.gov or telephone 804.786.1577   or 
o Tracy Matthews: email tracy.matthews@dcjs.virginai.gov or telephone 804.371.0635 
  
For assistance with the OGMS system, email ogmssupport@dcjs.virginia.gov and include the program 
area in the subject line. This should be used for general system questions and not form-specific inquiries. 
   
For additional resources, refer to the Website Links under the Funding Opportunity. 

mailto:nicole.phelps@dcjs.virginia.gov
mailto:tracy.matthews@dcjs.virginai.gov
mailto:ogmssuport@dcjs.virginia.gov






























 1 

AMLER PROGRAM SUBAWARD CONTRACT 
  

Virginia Department of Energy and 
Russell County 

 
Contract Number: P091809 

 
This AMLER Project subaward CONTRACT, made and entered into this 7th day of February, 2022, 

by and between the Commonwealth of Virginia, acting by and through the Virginia Department of 

Energy, Mined Land Repurposing (hereinafter called “VIRGINIA ENERGY”), and the Russell 

County (hereinafter called “SUBRECIPIENT”); 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 WHEREAS, VIRGINIA ENERGY is the agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia 

delegated the duties and powers to implement and enforce the Virginia Coal Surface Mining Control 

and Reclamation Act of 1979, Va. Code §§ 45.1-226 et seq., and the regulations promulgated 

thereunder (herein “State Program”),  as the same may be or become effective at any time or from 

time to time, as the Commonwealth’s permanent state regulatory program and abandoned mine land 

reclamation program approved pursuant to the federal Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act 

of 1977, (herein referred to as “SMCRA”). 

WHEREAS, as part of its State Program, VIRGINIA ENERGY has an approved abandoned 

mine land reclamation program (herein “AML Program”) as codified in Va. Code §§ 45.1-260 et 

seq.  The AML Program requires VIRGINIA ENERGY to annually prepare and submit to the United 

States Secretary of Interior applications for funding, including the implementation of specific AML 

reclamation projects; 

WHEREAS, consistent with the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2018 (Public Law 115-

141), the Department of the Interiors (DOI) Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement 

(OSMRE) had made funding available for projects in the Abandoned Mine Land Reclamation 

Economic Development Pilot Program 2018 AMLER.  The 2018 AMLER has provided the 



 2 

Commonwealth of Virginia with a grant award of $10 million to accelerate the remediation of AML 

sites with economic and community development end uses.  This 2018 AMLER is an opportunity 

for local communities and states to return impacted areas to productive reuse to achieve the economic 

and community development goals identified for the community and/or region. 

WHEREAS, the SUBRECIPIENT has submitted a complete grant application (Application) 

(Attachment B.2) under the terms of the 2018 AMLER Program (Attachment B.1) for Dante 

Community Redevelopment Project located in town of Dante in Russell County, Virginia. With the 

AML features and land adjacent to these AML features known to VIRGINIA ENERGY, the 

SUBRECIPIENT will create multi-use trails in and around the Dante community and ATV trails 

which link into the Spearhead Trails Mountain View Trail System.  This work shall be hereinafter 

called the PROJECT.  

WHEREAS, the Application has been reviewed by the AMLER Advisory Committee and 

submitted to OSMRE for vetting; and 

WHEREAS, the OSMRE has determined that the applicant is approved for Subrecipient 

Status (Attachment B.4); and 

WHEREAS, the OSMRE is satisfied with the concept of the Project and that it meets the 

intent of the AMLER program and has given the VIRGINIA ENERGY notice to move forward by 

the issuance of a Letter to Proceed with project development (Attachment B.3); and 

WHEREAS, the SUBRECIPIENT has completed Project Development which included 

preparation of an Environmental Assessment, Scope of Work, and project plans (Attachments A.1, 

B.6, C); and 

WHEREAS, the VIRGINIA ENERGY has reviewed the project plans and the Environmental 

Assessment has been submitted for OSMRE approval and a Finding of No Significant Impact 

(FONSI) and Authorization to Proceed (ATP) (Attachment A.2) have been obtained from OSMRE; 

and 



 3 

WHEREAS, the VIRGINIA ENERGY and the OSMRE have determined that the 

PROJECT meets identified characteristics and terms established for AMLER; and 

WHEREAS, AMLER Program projects such as this PROJECT are government-financed via 

a subaward from VIRGINIA ENERGY through its grant award from the 2018 AMLER Program 

and the VIRGINIA ENERGY under the OSMRE’s approval has authority to reimburse the 

Subrecipient out of the AMLER Grant for funds expended on project costs.   The VIRGINIA 

ENERGY and the OSMRE accepted and approved funding based upon the proposed project budget 

(Attachment B.5). 

WHEREAS, the SUBRECIPIENT will comply with the Environmental Assessment 

(Attachment A.1), Scope of Work (Attachment B.6), budget (Attachment B.5), and detailed project 

plans (Attachment C) as required by the VIRGINIA ENERGY and the OSMRE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual covenants 

hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

I. OBLIGATIONS OF SUBRECIPIENT – SUBRECIPIENT shall: 

1. Prepare and provide to VIRGINIA ENERGY a detailed construction plan for the 

Project, which corresponds with the approved Scope of Work.  

2. Allow the VIRGINIA ENERGY to inspect, review and comment on the Project plan 

design and any future amendments, changes, or modifications.  A copy of the final 

Project plan design approved by VIRGINIA ENERGY is attached as Attachment C, 

which this plan is incorporated herein and made a part thereof. 

3. Strictly adhere to the OSMRE 2018 AMLER funding objectives contained in 

Attachment B.1 hereto and made a part hereof, the AMLER Subaward, and the 

obligations of the SUBRECIPIENT contained within this CONTRACT (herein 

“Award Conditions”). 



 4 

4. Compliance with Federal Rules and Regulations: Funding for this CONTRACT is 

authorized through the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #15.252.  

Expenditures made and services provided pursuant to this CONTRACT shall be in 

accordance with 2 CFR Part 225, “Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal 

Governments” (OMB Circular A-87), and OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, 

Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.” Since the SUBRECIPIENT is a 

political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, it is governed by 48 CFR Part 

31, Contract Cost Principles and Procedures. The SUBRECIPIENT also is governed 

by the administrative requirements of 10 CFR 600, Federal Financial Assistance 

Regulations.  Any apparent inconsistency between Federal statutes and regulations 

and the terms and conditions contained in this award must be referred to the OSMRE 

Award Administrator for guidance. It is the responsibility of the SUBRECIPIENT to 

identify such an inconsistency and bring it to the attention of VIRGINIA ENERGY. 

The SUBRECIPIENT shall adhere, and require adherence by all recipients, 

subrecipients, vendors and subcontractors performing work required by this 

CONTRACT, to the federal rules as noted. 

5. Provide and pay all funds required to complete construction of the PROJECT site 

within the specified time period in accordance with the approved construction design, 

including but not limited to the costs of all permits, licenses, land acquisitions, and/or 

rights-of-way and easements pursuant to the Award Conditions. 

6. Maintain on the PROJECT site all information required by 4 VAC 25-130-707.12 

including a description of the Project, the exact location and boundaries of the 

PROJECT and that the VIRGINIA ENERGY administration of the PROJECT is 

being financed with federal funds through its 2018 AMLER Program Grant. 



 5 

7. Prior to commencement of construction at the PROJECT site, ensure that the Final 

Construction Design Plan and/or addenda, amendments thereto are in accordance with 

the Award Conditions.  Any addenda or amendments to the Construction Design Plan 

and/or construction documents shall be approved in writing by VIRGINIA ENERGY 

and OSMRE prior to their execution, issuance and/or implementation. 

8. Provide to VIRGINIA ENERGY copies of all documents and addenda the 

SUBRECIPIENT uses in contracting for the performance of construction work for 

the PROJECT if any. 

9. Afford VIRGINIA ENERGY personnel notice of and opportunity to attend and 

participate in all pre-construction conferences, and other relevant meetings concerning 

the PROJECT, if any. 

10. Provide free and reasonable access by VIRGINIA ENERGY and OSMRE personnel 

to the PROJECT site for the purpose of conducting weekly, or more frequent if 

necessary, inspections.  

11. Upon completion of the work required by the Construction Plan, provide VIRGINIA 

ENERGY with a copy of “as built” drawings of the PROJECT and/or a certification 

of completion.  

12. Designate a Project Director who shall be knowledgeable of and responsible for 

PROJECT activities and who shall act as the contact between VIRGINIA ENERGY 

and SUBRECIPIENT. 

13. Provide VIRGINIA ENERGY with written monthly progress reports within fifteen 

(15) days following the end of each calendar month after this CONTRACT is fully 

executed.  The report shall include all work accomplished, difficulties or delays 

encountered along with necessary remedial actions(s), and a schedule of future work.  



 6 

14. Provide to VIRGINIA ENERGY written verification that all easements, licenses, and 

applicable federal, state, or local permits or clearances required for the performance 

of the work required to complete the PROJECT have been obtained prior to start of 

any work on the PROJECT. 

15. Provide professional supervision of all construction work performed at the PROJECT 

site to ensure that the completed work conforms to the approved Final Construction 

Plan.  

16. Certify and acknowledge that the PROJECT boundaries and limits are as delineated 

on Attachment A.3, and that no work outside said boundaries and limits shall be 

eligible through the AMLER AWARD or covered under the terms of this 

CONTRACT. 

17. Provide proof to VIRGINIA ENERGY that the SUBRECIPIENT shall require its 

contractors to maintain in full force and effect during the terms of this CONTRACT 

a public liability insurance policy: 

(a) Worker’s Compensation – Statutory requirements and benefits. Coverage is 

compulsory for employers of three or more employees, to include the employer.  

Contractors who fail to notify the Commonwealth of increases in the number of 

employees that change their workers’ compensation requirements und the Code of 

Virginia during the course of the CONTRACT shall be in noncompliance with the 

contract. 

(b) Employers Liability - $100,000. 

(c) Commercial General Liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the 

aggregate.  Commercial General Liability is to include bodily injury and property 

damage, personal injury and advertising injury, products and completed operations 

coverage.  The Commonwealth of Virginia shall be added as an additional insured 



 7 

to the policy by an endorsement.  Coverage shall not exclude claims resulting 

from explosion, collapse or underground damage.  

(d) Automobile Liability - $1,000,000 combined single limit (required only if a motor 

vehicle not owned by the Commonwealth is to be used in the CONTRACT).  

SUBRECIPIENT must assure that the required coverage is maintained by the 

SUBRECIPIENT (or third party of such motor vehicle). 

18. The SUBRECIPIENT shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless VIRGINIA 

ENERGY / Commonwealth of Virginia, its agents, officers, employees, and 

designated representatives from any claims, damages, suits, actions, liabilities and 

costs of any nature or kind, whether at law or in equity, arising from or caused by 

performance by the SUBRECIPIENT or its agents, whether for design or 

construction of the PROJECT, or from the use of any materials, goods, or equipment 

of any kind or nature or any service of any kind, provided that such liability is not 

attributable to the sole negligence of the VIRGINIA ENERGY.  Nothing contained 

herein shall be deemed an expressed or implied waiver of the sovereign immunity of 

VIRGINIA ENERGY /Commonwealth of Virginia.  

19. Neither the SUBRECIPIENT, its officers, agents, employees, assignees, whether for 

design or construction of the PROJECT, shall be deemed employees of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia or of VIRGINIA ENERGY by virtue of the 

PROJECT, the location of the PROJECT, or the 2018 AMLER Award.  

20. Upon completion of any audit of the PROJECT conducted under OMB Circular A-

128, promptly provide the VIRGINIA ENERGY with a copy of any and all such 

audit reports.  

21. The SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that their contractors are responsible for 

sequencing, scheduling, coordinating, and monitoring the progress of the work as well 



 8 

as taking appropriate action to keep the work on schedule. The SUBRECIPIENT shall 

prepare and submit to the agency after signing the contract, a contract performance 

schedule for accomplishing the work based upon the completion time stated in the 

contract. 

22. The SUBRECIPIENT shall include in all Project Invitation for Bid packages the 

VIRGINIG ENERGY supplied Applicant Violator System (AVS) form (OMB #1029-

0119) (ATTACHMENT D.2).  All bidders must submit the completed form with the 

required Project bid documents. Any subcontractors, which will earn more than 10 

percent of the AMLER portion of the project, shall submit the Applicant Violator 

System (AVS) form documentation prior to the award of the bid(s) to the prime 

contractor. All engineering contractors to be selected for the project design awards 

shall also submit the Applicant Violator System (AVS) form. Prior to the award of 

any such contract(s), the form(s) will be submitted to VIRGININA ENERGY for the 

required AVS check to confirm bidder eligibility by the use of the Applicant Violator 

System. The Project award may not be made until the AVS check has been completed. 

Pursuant to the provisions of 30 CFR § 874.16, VIRGINIA ENERGY may direct the 

rejection of any contractor(s), subcontractor(s), or engineering firm(s) if the AVS 

review determines the entity, at the time of contract award, is not eligible to receive a 

permit or conditional permit to conduct surface coal mining operations under the 

Virginia Coal Surface Mining Reclamation Regulations. 

 

23. Commit to no CONTRACT or CONTRACT extension whose performance could 

extend beyond the 7th day of February 2025, the expiration date of the AMLER 

Award.  

24. Agree to not let the project be idled for a cumulative period exceeding sixty (60) days 

and to return to work forces and equipment upon request of VIRGINIA ENERGY at 

the end of the sixty-day period.  SUBRECIPIENT’s failure to perform this part may 

result in termination of the CONTRACT and default under Articles X and XI.  

 

25. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION 



 9 

A. During the performance of this CONTRACT, the SUBRECIPIENT agrees 

as follows: 

1. The SUBRECIPIENT and its Contractors shall not discriminate 

against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

religion, color, sex, national origin or disabilities, except where 

religion, sex, or national origin is a bona fide occupational qualification 

reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the SUBRECIPIENT 

or its Contractor exists.  The SUBRECIPIENT agrees to, and will 

require its Contractors to, post in conspicuous places, available to 

employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the 

provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  

2. The SUBRECIPIENT, in all solicitations or advertisements for 

employees placed by or on behalf of the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

Contractors, will state, and require that its Contractors state, that such 

SUBRECIPIENT or Contractor is an equal opportunity employer.  

3. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with 

federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the 

purpose of meeting the requirements of this Section.  

B. The SUBRECIPIENT and its Contractors will include the provisions of the 

foregoing paragraphs 24.A.1; 24.A.2; and 24.A.3 in every subcontract or 

purchase order over $10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each 

subcontractor or vendor. 



 10 

II. CERTIFICATIONS:   

The SUBRECIPIENT assures and certifies to the VIRGINIA ENERGY that it is, to 

the best of its knowledge and belief, in compliance, and will continue in compliance, and it 

will require that its Contractors conform, to the following Acts, as amended: 

1. State and Local Government Conflict of Interests Act; 

2. General Assembly Conflict of Interests Act; 

3. Virginia Freedom of Information Act; 

4. Virginia Fair Employment Contracting Act; 

5. Virginia Governmental Frauds Act; 

6. Virginia Public Procurement Act and related Agency Procurement and Surplus 

Property Manual; 

7. Virginians with Disabilities Act; 

8. Americans with Disabilities Act; 

9. Buy American Act (41 USC Chapter 83) 

10. Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871) 

11. Federal Immigration Reform and Control act of 1986; and 

12. Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, including but not limited to: 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) (prohibits discrimination 

on the basis of race, color or national origin); 

Title IX of the Education amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 

Sections 1681-1683, and 1685-1686) prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C., Section 

794) prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; 

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C., Sections 6101-

6107) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; 



 11 

The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 93-255), as amended, 

relating to non-discrimination on the basis of drug abuse; 

The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment 

and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 

nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism: 

Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C., 290 

dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse 

patient records; 

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C., Section 3601 et seq.), as 

amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; 

and/or any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which 

application for Federal assistance is being made, and the requirement on any other 

nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the AMLER AWARD or this 

CONTRACT. 

13. Federal Lobbying Act, 31 U.S.C.A., Section 1352 (entitled, “Limitation on use of 

appropriated funds to influence certain Federal contracting and financial transactions, 

and the Virginia Lobbying Disclosure and Regulation Act, Sec. 2.1-779 through 2.1-

794, Code of Virginia, 1950 as amended, including, without limitation, obtaining and 

delivering to the VIRGINIA ENERGY all necessary certifications and disclosures.  

14. Title II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 

Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provides for fair and equitable treatment of 

persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal and federally 

assisted programs.  These requirements apply to all interest in real property acquired 

for PROJECT purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases. 



 12 

15. Hatch Act (5 U.S.C., Sections 1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political 

activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or 

in part with Federal funds. 

16. Copeland Act (40 U.S.C., Section 276c and 18 U.S.C., Section 874), the Contract 

Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C., Sections 327-333) regarding labor 

standards for federally assisted construction sub-contracts. 

17. Flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster 

Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood 

hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total 

cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

18. Environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following:  (a) 

institution of environmental quality control measures under the National 

Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; 

(b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands 

pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in flood plains in accordance 

with EO 11988: (e) assurance of Project’s consistency with the approved State 

management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 

(16 U.S.C., Sections 1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean 

Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176 (c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as 

amended (42 U.S.C., Section 7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of 

drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-

523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 

1973, as amended, (P.L. 93-205). 



 13 

19. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C., Sections 1271 et seq.) related to 

protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers 

system.  

20. The SUBRECIPIENT shall assist the VIRGINIA ENERGY in assuring compliance 

with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 

U.S.C. 470), EO 11593 (identification and preservation of historic properties), and the 

Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. 469a-1 et seq.). 

21. 40 CFR 122-EPA Storm Water Regulations; PL 92-500, Section 404 – Utility 

Crossings of Navigable Waters – U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; Code of Virginia, 

Title 10.1, Chapter 5, Article 4  - Erosion and Sediment Control Law – Soil and Water 

Conservation Commission; VR 625-02-00 – Erosion and Sediment Control 

Regulations; Code of Virginia, Title 62.1, Chapter 3.1, Article 44 – State Water 

Control Law; VR 680-15-02 – Virginia Water Protection Permit; Code of Virginia, 

Title 62.1, Chapter 3 – Sub-aqueous Bed Permit – Marine Resources Commission. 

 

 
III. OBLIGATIONS OF VIRGINIA ENERGY 

VIRGINIA ENERGY will: 

1. Review and submit to the SUBRECIPIENT comments on the Construction Plan to 

monitor adherence to AMLER Award conditions and obligations. 

2. Provide administration of the PROJECT, document the costs and expenses incurred 

by VIRGINIA ENERGY, document the findings necessary to qualify the PROJECT 

as a government financed construction project as contemplated by Va. Code § 45.1-

253.2 and 4 VAC 25-130 Part 707 of VSMCRA, including those costs noted in the 

NEPA document. 



 14 

3. Document eligibility of the PROJECT for funding by securing an Authorization to 

Proceed from the federal Office of Surface Mining. 

4. Designate a PROJECT Inspector to monitor the site and to serve as contact to the 

SUBRECIPIENT. 

5. Provide the SUBRECIPIENT with consultations and information that are available 

and reasonably required for PROJECT purposes. 

6. SAFETY INSPECTIONS OF CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT ON JOB SITE: 

VIRGINIA ENERGY reserves the right to conduct safety inspections of contractor 

and/or sub-contractor owned or leased equipment delivered to or present at an 

AMLER construction site. VIRGINIA ENERGY shall conduct a pre-construction 

safety inspection of all equipment at the site as identified on the equipment list for the 

PROJECT as provided by the contractor.  If any previously unidentified equipment 

is delivered to the site for use, the contractor shall contact the Inspector/Contract 

Administrator to conduct a safety inspection of that equipment.  VIRGINIA 

ENERGY may also conduct equipment safety inspections at any time during the 

Contract period while the equipment is on site.  The SUBRECIPIENT will require 

all contractors to adhere to these stipulations. Inspections shall be in accordance with 

established VIRGINIA ENERGY inspection criteria and evidenced by a safety 

inspection checklist (Attachment D.1). VIRGINIA ENERGY requires that the 

contractor perform a daily pre-shift inspection of all equipment prior to its use each 

day. VIRGINIA ENERGY can provide a template of the Surface Equipment 

Inspection Pre-operational Exam Checklist upon request.  

7. Upon receipt and approval of once monthly invoices, reimburse the SUBRECIPIENT 

for costs incurred by the SUBRECIPIENT in compliance with the CONTRACT and 

necessary for completion of the PROJECT.  For the purpose of this CONTRACT, 



 15 

“incurred” shall mean any invoice or request for payment paid by the 

SUBRECIPIENT or waiting payment under the PROJECT.  Reimbursement will be 

made in accordance with the Commonwealth of Virginia’s Prompt Pay requirements 

and VIRGINIA ENERGY procedures. The VIRGINIA ENERGY shall withhold 5% 

retainage on all invoices except for project development expenditures.  Separate 

requests for payment should be submitted for project development and construction 

expenditures.   

8. Upon receipt of proper invoicing, provide the SUBRECIPIENT with reimbursement for 

the approved actual cost and up to, but not exceeding $269,000.00 for engineering and 

construction services for the PROJECT described in this CONTRACT. 

 

IV. TERM OF CONTRACT 

This CONTRACT shall be effective as of the 7th day of February 2022 and shall 

expire thirty-six (36) months thereafter on 7th day of October 2025. 

 

V. EXCESS COSTS 

If the SUBRECIPIENT performs, allows or causes work to be performed or accepts 

a bid which exceeds the line allocations set forth in the PROJECT budget attached hereto as 

Attachment B.6, as amended and approved by VIRGINIA ENERGY from time to time, 

which make up the $269,000.00 appropriation for Engineering and Construction Services, the 

SUBRECIPIENT shall bear any and all such excess costs, it being understood between the 

parties that under no circumstances shall VIRGINIA ENERGY be liable for the payment of 

and/or reimbursement to the SUBRECIPIENT of costs in excess of those approved by the 

VIRGINIA ENERGY as part of the PROJECT budget but in no event in excess of the 

respective caps set forth for design or construction in this section. 



 16 

 VI. FINANCIAL/COMPLIANCE RECORDS AVAILABILITY  

The SUBRECIPIENT agrees to retain and provide reasonable access to all books, 

records, and other documents relative to this CONTRACT for five (5) years after final 

payment or until otherwise notified by VIRGINIA ENERGY, whichever is later. 

VIRGINIA ENERGY, its authorized agents, and/or State and Federal auditors shall have full 

access to and the right to examine any of said materials during said period at reasonable times 

and upon 24 hours advance notice. 

 

VII. CONSTRUCTION ASSURANCES 

The SUBRECIPIENT hereby assures and certifies that they shall comply with the 

laws, regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements and use of Federal funds for this 

federally funded Project.  Also, the SUBRECIPIENT gives assurance and certifies that: 

1. The SUBRECIPIENT shall cause work on the PROJECT to be commenced within 

a reasonable time after NOTIFICATION TO PROCEED from the VIRGINIA 

ENERGY and that the SUBRECIPIENT will execute the PROJECT to 

completion with reasonable diligence.  The SUBRECIPIENT will keep the 

VIRGINIA ENERGY informed of PROJECT progress and delays. 

2. The SUBRECIPIENT shall not dispose of or encumber its title or other interests in 

Property, including the PROJECT, and facilities located thereon during the period 

of Federal interest or while the Government holds bonds, whichever is the longer.   

3. During the term of this CONTRACT, the SUBRECIPIENT shall not dispose of, 

modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title, or other interest in 

the Property, including the PROJECT, and facilities without permission and 

instructions from the VIRGINIA ENERGY.  The SUBRECIPIENT shall record 

the federal interest in the title of Property in accordance with VIRGINIA ENERGY 



 17 

directives and shall include a covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole 

or in part with Federal assistance funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful 

life of the PROJECT. The SUBRECIPIENT shall adhere to 30 CFR part 879.14 

and 879.15 for Property management and disposition. 

4.  

VIII. EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 

This CONTRACT shall be executed on behalf of the SUBRECIPIENT by such 

person or persons as are authorized to act on behalf of the SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to law 

and on behalf of the VIRGINIA ENERGY by the Director of Mining Programs. 

 

         OBLIGATION TO COMPLETE     

If the delivery of supplies, services, materials or equipment is not fully performed in 

accordance with the terms of the CONTRACT by the time specified in the CONTRACT, the 

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to complete the remaining or incomplete work at its own expense; 

except that the accomplishment be delayed by any act, negligence, or default on the part of 

the Commonwealth or OSMRE, public enemy, war, embargo,  fire, explosion or Act of God 

(including without limitation, adverse weather conditions) not caused by the negligence or 

intentional act of the SUBRECIPIENT or its supplier(s), or by riot, sabotage, or labor trouble 

that results from a cause or causes entirely beyond the control or fault of the contractor or his 

supplier(s), a reasonable extension of time as the procuring public body deems appropriate 

may be granted.  Upon receipt of a written request and justification for an extension from the 

SUBRECIPIENT, the VIRGINIA ENERGY will submit the extension request to the 

OSMRE.  OSMRE has the sole authority to approve the amendment for an extension for the 

performance of the CONTRACT or delivery of goods.  



 18 

It shall also be known and understood by both parties that if the CONTRACT expires 

and the delivery of supplies, services, materials or equipment has not been fully performed in 

accordance with the terms of the CONTRACT, it is determined the Commonwealth is not at 

fault, and grant funding for the CONTRACT has expired, the subrecipient shall, at the 

SUBRECIPIENT’s sole cost and expense, complete its obligations under the CONTRACT. 

 

IX. INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION 

This CONTRACT constitutes the entire understanding between the 

SUBRECIPIENT and VIRGINIA ENERGY.  No alteration, amendment or modification in 

the provisions of this CONTRACT shall be effective unless it is reduced to writing, signed by 

the parties, and attached hereto. 

 

X. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

Any failure by a party to perform any obligation under this CONTRACT shall 

constitute a breach of the CONTRACT.  Upon breach of the CONTRACT by a party, the 

other party may, at its option, declare its intention to terminate the CONTRACT unless the 

breach is cured by the party breaching the CONTRACT.  Such declaration shall be in writing 

to the party in breach stating the intention to terminate, the reason(s) therefore and the action 

necessary to cure the breach.  Upon receipt of notice of intention to terminate, the party in 

breach shall have 60 days to take the curative action and avoid termination.  The VIRGINIA 

ENERGY shall not be obligated to pay for any services or work performed after the notice 

of intention to terminate.  

 

 

 



 19 

XI. DEFAULT 

In case of SUBRECIPIENT’s failure to deliver goods or services in accordance with 

the CONTRACT terms and conditions, VIRGINIA ENERGY, after due oral or written 

notice, may procure them from other sources and hold the subrecipient/contractor responsible 

for any resulting additional purchases and administrative cost.  This remedy shall be in 

addition to any other remedies, which the Commonwealth may have.  The VIRGINIA 

ENERGY may also act to forfeit SUBRECIPIENT’s bond in accordance with regulations 

promulgated under 45.1-247 of the Code. 

 

XII. NOTICE 

Any notice required hereunder shall be made in writing to the applicable party at the 

following addresses: 

VIRGINIA ENERGY  
 
Lesa C. Baker 
AML Projects Coordinator 
3405 Mountain Empire Road 
Big Stone Gap, VA 24219 
Phone No. 276-523-8216 

SUBRECIPIENT 
 
Lonzo Lester 
Administrator, Russell County 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, VA  24266 
Phone No. 276-889-8000 

 

ADDITIONAL NOTIFICATIONS 

For purposes of this CONTRACT, the notice shall be deemed received if mailed by 

certified mail, return receipt requested to the above addresses on the date of the first notice of 

delivery by the post office.  Failure to pick up the notice in response to the notices of delivery 

shall not constitute a defense to receipt hereunder. 

 

 

 



 20 

XIII. NON-WAIVER CLAUSE 

No review, approval, acceptance of nor payment for any of the services required by 

VIRGINIA ENERGY shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights of or any cause 

of action arising out of the performance of the CONTRACT.  Notwithstanding any contrary 

provision contained herein, the SUBRECIPIENT shall be and remain liable to the 

VIRGINIA ENERGY for all costs of any kind which are incurred by the VIRGINIA 

ENERGY as a result of a negligent act, errors or omissions of the SUBRECIPIENT or its 

Contractor in the performance of any of the services furnished.   

 

XIV. GOVERNING LAW 

This CONTRACT shall be deemed executed in Wise County, Virginia.  The 

execution, interpretation and enforcement of this CONTRACT shall be governed by the laws 

of the Commonwealth of Virginia without regard to any conflict of laws or principles.  

 

XV. NON-APPROPRIATION 

All contracts for products and services and all payment obligations under the 2018 

AMLER AWARD and this CONTRACT are subject to appropriated AMLER funds being 

available for expenditure for that purpose.  The VIRGINIA ENERGY shall promptly notify 

the SUBRECIPIENT of any action denying such funding.  In such event, any outstanding 

CONTRACT shall be cancelled without further obligation to the extent the affected products 

or services have not yet been duly delivered and accepted.  

If any purchases are to be supported by federal funding, and such funding is not made 

available, the VIRGINIA ENERGY may terminate the contracts for goods or services, which 

are so dependent on such federal funds without further obligation.  

  



 21 

XVI. ENTIRE CONTRACT 

This CONTRACT incorporates and contains the entire CONTRACT and 

understanding between the parties.  There are no oral understandings, terms or conditions not 

herein recited, and neither party has relied upon any representations, expressed or implied, 

not incorporated or contained in this CONTRACT and its attachments.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this CONTRACT by their duly 

authorized representatives as of the day and year fist above written. 

 

 
 
RUSSELL COUNTY 
 
 
 
BY: _____________________________ 
Executive Director 
(Title) 
 
 
_______________ 
(Date) 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 
MINED LAND REPURPOSING 
 
 
 
BY: _________________________________ 
Director of Mining Programs  
(Title) 
 
 
__________________ 
(Date) 
 
 

 

  

   



 22 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 
A.1  Environmental Assessment  
 
A.2 Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) and Authorization to Proceed (ATP) 
 
A.3 NEPA Consultation Boundary (i.e. Project Boundary) Map 
 
  



 23 

ATTACHMENT B 
 
B.1  2018 AMLER Guidance Document 
 
B.2 Vetted project application 
 
B.3 Letter to Proceed with Project Development from OSMRE 
 
B.4 Subrecipient Approval Notice  
 
B.5  Project Budget ($269,000.00) 
 
B.6  Scope of Work 
  



 24 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

C.1 Construction Plan and Project Drawings 
 
 
 
  



 25 

Attachment D 
 

D.1  Equipment Safety Inspection Checklist 
 
D.2  Applicant Violator System form (OMB 1029-0119) and Instructions 
 

 

 









































































Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight


































































































































	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 2/7/22     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Interjurisdictional Agreement.pdf
	W I T N E S S E T H :
	(13) This Agreement may only be modified by a writing approved by the Counties’ respective governing bodies, by vote at a public meeting, evidenced by a certified copy of a written resolution of each County's governing body.
	(14) The Counties may not withdraw from this Agreement unless the other Participants unanimously agree, by vote of their respective governing bodies at a public meeting.
	COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA
	ATTEST:
	COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
	ATTEST:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 2/7/22         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Retirement VRS 1.pdf
	Eligibility:
	Plan Option
	Application Procedures
	Revocability
	Rescinding of Program

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 2/7/22         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Retirement VRS 2.pdf
	Eligibility:
	Plan Option
	Application Procedures
	Revocability
	Rescinding of Program

	Retirement VRS 2 (attorney revisions).pdf
	Eligibility:
	Benefits:
	Application Procedures
	Revocability
	Rescinding of Program

	Interjurisdictional Agreement.pdf
	W I T N E S S E T H :
	(13) This Agreement may only be modified by a writing approved by the Counties’ (Russell and Tazewell) respective governing bodies, by vote at a public meeting, evidenced by a certified copy of a written resolution of each County's governing body.
	(14) The Counties (Russell and Tazewell) may not withdraw from this Agreement unless the other Participants unanimously agree, by vote of their respective governing bodies at a public meeting.
	COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA
	ATTEST:
	COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
	ATTEST:

	Dante Contract - FINAL1.pdf
	AMLER PROGRAM SUBAWARD CONTRACT
	Virginia Department of Energy and
	Russell County
	Contract Number: P091809
	II. CERTIFICATIONS:
	The SUBRECIPIENT assures and certifies to the VIRGINIA ENERGY that it is, to the best of its knowledge and belief, in compliance, and will continue in compliance, and it will require that its Contractors conform, to the following Acts, as amended:
	V. EXCESS COSTS

	VII. CONSTRUCTION ASSURANCES
	VIII. EXECUTION OF CONTRACT
	IX. INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION
	X. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT


	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Group15: Off


